
Overview and Scrutiny Board 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.

The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process.

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

DATE: Wednesday, 4 November 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

THE PROCEEDINGS OF THIS MEETING CAN BE VIEWED LIVE 
ON THE DAY VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_YWVlODVkNGYtOGViZi00YWM5LWI2YTMtMm
U0MjBiZjNmZjA0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22
68c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of meeting held on 7 October 2020 (Pages 1 - 6)

4  Treasury Management Strategy Mid Year Review 2020/21 

Councillor Hinds - Lead Member for Finance and Support Services
Joanne Hardman - Chief Finance Officer
Chris Hesketh - Head of Financial Management

(Pages 7 - 18)

5  Budget Proposals 2021/20 - Update (verbal) 

Councillor Hinds - Lead Member for Finance and Support Services

Public Document Pack



Joanne Hardman - Chief Finance Officer
Chris Hesketh - Head of Financial Management

6  Scrutiny Panels Work Programmes 2020/21 - Updates (verbal) 

Councillor Adrian Brocklhurst
Councilor Tanya Burch
Councilor Margaret Morris
Councilor Robert Sharpe 

7  Work Programme 2020/21 (Pages 19 - 22)

8  Any other business 

Contact Officer: Mike Relph - Senior Democratic Services officer
Tel No: 0161 793 3318
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


1

Overview and Scrutiny Board

Held on Wednesday 7 October 2020 via MS Teams Live

Present
Councillors Jolley (in the chair), Brocklehurst, K Garrido, King, Nelson, Pevitt, Sharpe and Turner

Lead and Executive Support Members
Councillor Hinds Lead Member for Finance and Support Services
Councillor Bentham Executive Support Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations

Officers
Sam Betts Assistant Director HR & OD
Steven Fry Assistant Director Digital & Customer Services
Joanne Hardman Chief Finance Officer
Carol Eddleston Senior Democratic Services Advisor

Minute Silence 

The meeting opened with the observance of one minute’s silence following the recent death of 
former Salford City Councillor, Norman Owen.

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Bellamy, Burch and Morris.

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3. Pandemic Recovery Workforce and Digital Update

Councillor Bentham, Executive Support Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations introduced 
the item by commending all those involved in ensuring that the organisation had continued to both 
deliver and support the delivery of frontline services through people and technology working 
together. She then invited the Assistant Directors HR & OD and Digital & Customer Services to 
present in more detail and respond to questions and observations from members of the board.

The Assistant Director HR &OD began by saying that the crisis response to the pandemic had proved 
the concept that work was ‘what we do, what we achieve and the outcomes we deliver – not just 
somewhere you go’. The workforce had been enabled to continue to deliver essential services whilst 
working from home and other locations throughout the pandemic.  Those services and teams for 
which there was a service imperative or specific role requirement that required workspace to be 
available in the city (i.e. a community-based service, a role working with children and families or 
visiting premises in the city) and individuals with an unsuitable home working environment had also 
been enabled to have access to a Covid secure workspace across Salford City Council’s estate.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

A comprehensive organisational wide workplace requirement audit had identified three priority 
groups with an urgent and immediate need for access to workspace in the city.  All of those people 
working in the ‘priority one’ services had had, or would soon have completed, a thorough 
reintroduction and reorientation programme and, where appropriate, had been assigned a 
designated workspace, been allocated to a bubble and were now able to spend some time working 
from one of our buildings. These included teams who worked with vulnerable children and families, 
including social workers who required touch down and comfort space between visits, appropriate 
space to meet with families and for family contact. In addition, a new Salford ‘Workspace Access’ 
application had been piloted and successfully launched that would help people access these 
workspaces in a Covid secure way.

Ongoing support was being delivered through the council’s Digital Eagles to support people to work 
in new and different ways together with full and detailed reinduction sessions supported by a digital 
‘return to the workplace handbook.’  Leadership development had also been planned to support 
managers to focus on what people achieved and the outcomes and outputs that were delivered and 
to support colleagues to work in a flexible and inclusive way.

The Assistant Director HR & OD responded to a number of questions and observations from 
members as follows:

- Support was being offered to managers to assist them to lead through qualitative outcomes, 
rather than quantitative measures.

- New starters were being supported more than ever to be made to feel part of the 
organisation, with regular dialogue with managers and team members, buddying, one-to-
ones,  access to training & development opportunities and personal development reviews.

- Some officers were working at home full time whereas some were working in a hybrid 
manner with some time at home and some time in a Covid secure Salford workspace.

- All officers who were working at home were digitally enabled at the start of lockdown with 
laptops rolled out very promptly.

- Arrangements were made to deliver equipment to all officers with previously identified 
special requirements. 

- Any requirements identified in the course of individual workplace requirement audits were 
accommodated and arrangements were made for officers to collect separate monitors and 
office chairs where appropriate.

- Officers had undertaken mandatory training on GDPR & data security before lockdown and 
the daily system log-on required all users to acknowledge their obligations in relation to ICT 
policies and procedures.

- Officers were being advised that they were entitled to claim tax relief as a result of enforced 
home working (increased energy consumption and purchase of additional required 
equipment) and that they should notify their insurers, mortgage provider and landlord.

- Workplace requirement audits had identified approximately 50 members of staff whose 
homes were unsafe or unsuitable for home working and work had been ongoing to find 
them a Covid secure workspace for at least part of their working week. 

- Salford Royal Foundation Trust was now responsible for Integrated Care Organisation staff.
- The importance of physical and mental health & wellbeing was recognised from the very top 

down and the intranet included a significant amount of information/tips/links which were 
regularly refreshed and about which reminders were regularly issued.

- Data on how many people in total had asked for a workspace would be compiled and 
circulated to the board.

Page 2



3

- Data on savings in travel costs to the Council would be compiled and circulated to the board.
- Members were working at home more since the closure of the Civic Centre did not appear to 

have been offered a workplace requirement audit.
- Members welcomed the suspension of car parking charges for members & officers but did 

not recall receiving notification at any point since March.

The Assistant Director Digital & Customer Services presented an update on the digital elements of 
the report: Redesign of ICT division, project updates and Digital You.

At its meeting on 22 September Workforce Panel had agreed to a new operating model which 
moved from a traditional Information, communication and technology (ICT) function to a more 
contemporary Digital, Data and Technology (DDaT) department. The redesign had commenced in 
April 2019 in line with the city council’s change methodology and over 100 cumulative hours had 
been focused on employee involvement and engagement in designing the new operating model, 
ensuring that the new structure and new roles had been co-designed with the input of employees 
across the service, stakeholders and customers. 

The target operating model would create a strong Senior Management team that could develop the 
strategic roadmap of services; provide better opportunities for ICT staff to develop their technical 
skills with more rewarding roles; enable a robust Service Delivery function, providing great service 
from the helpdesk through to troubleshooting & delivery and reducing the time taken to resolve 
critical issues and improving the service delivery;  expand and re-focus the Development team, 
looking not just at supporting the current application set, but forward looking towards new systems 
coming online, and developing a different support strategy that allowed the rapid integration of new 
systems and technologies; facilitate improved implementation of DDaT projects and Work Plans 
through enhanced communication and greater technical understanding of Delivery Managers, giving 
more opportunities to identify how better use of technology could streamline processes and systems 
within People, Place and Service Reform, and provide sufficient resources to address emerging 
threats and risks associated with cyber security and data protection in an increasingly digital 
environment.

As a result of the Microsoft 365 and new kit roll out the whole organisation was now equipped and 
enabled to work from anywhere at any time. Tens of thousands of virtual meetings had taken place 
and there had been nearly 250,000 chat messages.

A Digital Inclusion Manager was being recruited to work in collaboration with the community and 
voluntary sector to plan, deliver and evaluate Digital You and to progress the tablet lending scheme 
as part of the council’s efforts and commitment to narrowing the digital divide.

Councillor Hinds, as Lead Member for Finance and Support Services, recognised the importance of all 
this work and was pleased that the council had had the foresight to invest in new kit and software 
before the pandemic began. He acknowledged the importance of not losing sight of those in the city 
who were still digitally excluded. He also took the opportunity to thank the Digital Eagles for all their 
work in supporting members and officers. Councillor Bentham echoes these comments and 
extended her thanks to all concerned for everything that had been achieved collectively.

The Assistant Director Digital & Customer Services responded to a number of questions and 
observations from members as follows:

Page 3



4

- Officers were working with schools and partners across the city to address issues of 
connectivity and affordability as there were undoubtedly families without access to the 
types and number of devices that they might need.

- Discussions were ongoing with community centres about how they might re-open safely so 
that residents could use their digital facilities.

- Electronic devices had proven to be a lifeline for those isolated in hospital or care homes and 
officers were happy to have discussions with partners about possible donation or loan of any 
additional devices.

- Information on the tablet lending scheme would be circulated to members in due course so 
that they could publicise it to residents.

- The outcome of the review of the Good Things Foundation project would be fed back to the 
board in a future report. 

RESOLVED, THAT: 
1) The report be noted and the approach taken by all concerned to enable staff to continue to 

work effectively and to deliver essential services to residents throughout the pandemic be 
commended.

2) Further details as outlined above be circulate to the board outside of the meeting, and
3) A further update on the pandemic recovery in terms of workforce and digital be presented 

in the first quarter of 2021.

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 2 September 2020

RESOLVED: THAT, the minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2020 be approved as a correct 
record subject to the inclusion of Councillor Pevitt in the list of members present.

5. Work Programme

The board noted the programme as presented and agreed that the update on the scrutiny panel 
work programmes to the 4 November meeting should include a look back at activities since last 
reported on 1 July.

RESOLVED, THAT: the Overview and Scrutiny Board work programme be updated as outlined above.

6. Any Other Business

6a. Budget Verbal Update

Councillor Hinds, Lead Member for Finance and Support Services, introduced this item and 
confirmed that there was currently still a £11m pressure driven by Covid-19 pressures on income 
and expenditure.  In the round 5 Covid impact return to central government, total impact had been 
reported as £51.1m of pressures arising in 2020/21 or future years in the case of the collection fund. 

He was extremely concerned about the impact of the furlough scheme ending and did not believe 
that the new job support scheme offered sufficient support to those affected. The council was 
anticipating an increase in the number of claimants for the Council Tax reduction scheme but it was 
difficult to estimate at this stage what the likely impact would be. More definitive information would 
be made available when the position became clearer.

Page 4



5

The Chief Finance Officer said she could not remember a time when it had been more difficult to 
forecast accurately than it was now.

Emergency Covid funding had been received in three tranches, totalling £19m and further 
government support would be received in the form of the Sales, Fees and Charges grant for which 
the claim was being compiled for submission to the Government imminently, with year end 
reconciliation required. The claim allowed for up to 75% of the losses incurred by the council, but 
would not include council tax, business rates and commercial losses. 

Since the last budget monitoring report to the board, the government had announced a £546m 
extension to the Infection Control Fund until 31 March 2021. Salford City Council’s share of this was 
£2.1m, which was paid out to providers of residential and community care. The government had also 
announced Test and Trace support payments of £500 to be administered by local authorities.

The council continued to lobby the government about the need for openness and transparency in 
relation to the Comprehensive Spending Review and allocation of funding to local government but 
realistically was expecting an announcement about funding for 2021/21 rather than an 
announcement about longer term funding arrangements.

RESOLVED, THAT: the board thank the Lead Member for Finance and Support Services and the Chief 
Finance Officer for the comprehensive verbal update on the current budget position.

7. Date of Next Meeting
 
To be held at 2:00pm on Wednesday 4 November 2020 via MS Teams Live, preceded by a members 
only briefing at 1:30pm.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

PART 1 ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD, 4 NOVEMBER 2020

TITLE:  TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY MID YEAR REVIEW 2020/21 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
It is recommended that members note the contents of the report and the update to the 
prudential indicators

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This report provides a progress report on the treasury management strategy for 
2020/21 and updates the prudential indicators. City Mayor and Members will be 
requested to approve the update to the prudential indicators 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Various working papers in the Finance division including:

 Treasury management strategy 2020/21 reported to council on 26 February 2020

 Treasury management practices TMPs 1 to 12 and supporting schedules

 Treasury management in the public services, code of practice and cross-sectoral 
guidance notes (CIPFA), “CIPFA Code”

 Treasury management in the public services, guidance notes for local authorities 
including police authorities and fire authorities (CIPFA), “CIPFA guidance”

KEY DECISION: YES / NO

DETAILS: overleaf

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council operates a balanced budget which broadly means cash raised during the 
year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation 
ensures this cash flow is adequately planned with surplus monies being invested in low 
risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering optimising 
investment return.

1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of 
the Council, essentially longer-term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet 
its capital spending schedule. This management of longer-term cash may involve 
arranging long or short-term loans or using longer term cash flow surpluses and on 
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost 
objectives.

1.3 Treasury management is defined as:

   “The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

2. INTRODUCTION

2.1 This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (revised 2017).

The primary requirements of the Code are as follows: 

 Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which 
sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management 
activities.

 Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
way the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives.

 Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual 
Report, (stewardship report), covering activities during the previous year.

 Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and 
administration of treasury management decisions.

 Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy 
and policies to the Overview and scrutiny board.

2.2 This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management, and covers the following:

 An economic update for the first part of the 2020/21 financial year;

Page 8



3

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy;

 The Council’s capital expenditure, as set out in the budget report, and prudential 
indicators;

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2020/21;

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2020/21;

 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2020/21.

3. ECONOMIC UPDATE

3.1 During the first half of 2020 GDP fell by 21.8%, the bank of England monetary policy 
committee forecast peak unemployment in quarter 4 2020. 

3.2 CPI inflation is expected to rise above the 2% target in quarter 3 2022. A new phrase 
was used in the Bank of England policy statement, namely that “it does not intend to 
tighten monetary policy until there is clear evidence that significant progress is being 
made in eliminating spare capacity and achieving the 2% target sustainably”. This may 
indicate, that even if inflation rises to 2% in 2022, the MPC will not raise the Bank Rate 
until they can clearly see that the level of inflation is going to be persistently above 
target if it takes no action to raise Bank Rate

3.3 Overall, the economy is expected to return to pre-covid levels over a longer timescale, 
with the recovery adversely affected by the continuing impact of COVID 19.

4. INTEREST RATE FORECAST

Table 1 Link Asset Services interest rate forecast:
Link Group Interest Rate View       11.8.20

Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23

Bank Rate View 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

3 Month average earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 - - - -

6 Month LIBID 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 - - - -

12 Month LIBID 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 - - - -

5yr PWLB Rate 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10

10yr PWLB Rate 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30

25yr PWLB Rate 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.70

50yr PWLB Rate 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50

4.1 The Bank of England took emergency action in March to cut Bank Rate to first 0.25%, 
and then to 0.10%, the level at which it remains 

5. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE

5.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 was approved by 
the council on 26 February 2020. The council’s Annual Investment Strategy, which is 
incorporated into the TMSS, outlines the council’s investment priorities as security of 
capital and liquidity. The council also aims to achieve the optimum return (yield) in 
investments, commensurate with the proper levels of security and liquidity. 

Page 9



4

5.2 In the current economic climate, it is considered appropriate to keep a significant 
proportion of investments short term (less than 1 year) and only invest with high credit 
rated financial institutions or those guaranteed by the UK government, using Link Asset 
Services’ suggested creditworthiness approach. 

5.3 During April, May and June the counterparty limits were temporarily raised from £15m 
to £25m, after consultation with the lead member for Finance and Support Services, in 
order to manage the cashflow impact of money received by the council mainly relating 
to Covid19. This included £47.4m business grants funding to be distributed to local 
business, £8.9m emergency COVID 19 funding from the government and the 
accelerated payment of section 31 grants £11.4m.

5.4 During the first half of 2020/21 the council had not taken out any long-term borrowing. 
However, as the capital financing requirement for 2020/21 is forecast to rise by 
£44.7m, the option to use long term borrowing to finance this expenditure to minimise 
the council’s interest rate risk exposure will be kept under review.

5.5 Investments and borrowing during the first six months of the year have been in line with 
the strategy, but with revised counterparty limits. Currently the target is to hold £25m -
£35m in callable investments in order to provide the necessary liquidity for the council’s 
cash flow.

5.6 There are no policy changes to the TMSS; the details in this report update the position 
in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes already approved. 

6. THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL POSITION (PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS)

Table 2 Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure £m for 2020/21
Original 
estimate

Current 
position

Revised 
estimate

Capital expenditure 160.4 37.6 125.5

6.1 Table 2 shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure since the capital 
programme was agreed in February 2020. The increase in forecast spend is due to 
schemes being reprofiled from the 2019/20 capital programme. 

Table 3 Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme 2020/21 £m
Original 
estimate

Revised 
estimate

Grants 74.6 41.9
Borrowing requirement 85.8 83.6
Total 160.4 125.5

6.2 Table 3 shows the funding of the capital expenditure plans. The borrowing requirement 
increases the underlying indebtedness of the Council by way of the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), although this will be reduced in part by revenue charges for the 
repayment of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision). 

Page 10



5

Table 4 Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) £m 2020/21
Original 
estimate

Revised 
estimate

Capital financing requirement 889.3 709.2

Annual change in CFR 203.4 44.7

6.3 The reduction in the forecast capital financing requirement is due to the postponement 
by one year of the implementation of IFRS 16 due to the COVID 19 pandemic. As a 
result, several leases will not be recognised on the council’s balance sheet until 
2021/22.

Table 5 Debt forecast £m
Original 
estimate

Current 
position

Revised 
estimate

Borrowing 505.0 404.3 490.3
Other long-term liabilities 329.7 175.9 173.3
Total debt (yearend position) 834.7 580.2 663.6

6.4 Long term liabilities reduce as PFI schemes payments are made and as transferred 
debt (from the breakup of Greater Manchester Council) is repaid. By the end of the 
year a further 6 months of payments will have been made, this will reduce the balance 
nearer to the revised estimate. The reduction in the forecast is due to the 
postponement of the implementation of IFRS 16.

6.5 A key control applied to treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that, over 
the medium term, debt will only be for a capital purpose, so no borrowing to invest. 
Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of CFR 
in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2020/21 and next 
two financial years. As the total debt at the end of the year is forecast to be £663.6m 
and the forecast CFR is £709.2m this control has been complied with. 

6.6 This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years. The Council has 
approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need if it is considered that this would be 
advantageous. 

Table 6 Prudential Indicators Operational Boundary £m 2020/21
Original 
estimate

Revised 
estimate

Borrowing 628.1 617.0
Other long-term liabilities 359.8 203.3
Total debt (yearend position) 987.9 820.3

6.7 The Operational Boundary for External Debt is based on the probable external debt 
during the year. It is not a limit and actual borrowing could vary around this boundary 
for short times during the year. It acts as an early warning indicator to ensure the 
authorised limit is not breached. Similarly, to the authorised limit it also provides scope 
for the Council to borrow in advance of need. The prudential indicators have been 
updated to reflect changes to the underlying need to borrow due to the changes in the 
forecast borrowing requirement. In addition, for other long-term liabilities, the limit has 
reduced as the revised estimate reflects the delay in the implementation of the new 
accounting standard IFRS 16 . More details on IFRS 16 are detailed in section 9.

Page 11



6

6.8 The Chief Finance Officer reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the current or 
future years in complying with this prudential indicator. 

6.9 A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing. This is the 
Authorised Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited and 
needs to be set and revised by Members. It reflects the level of borrowing which, while 
not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer 
term. It is the expected maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected 
movements. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The Authorised Limit is adjusted to reflect changes to the 
council’s capital programme and the delay in the implementation of IFRS 16. 

Table 7 Prudential indicator - authorised limit for external debt £m
Original 
estimate

Current 
position

Revised 
estimate

Borrowing 685.4 404.3 657.0
Other long-term liabilities 389.8 175.9 233.3
Total debt (yearend position) 1,075.2 580.2 890.3

6.10 Appendix 2 details the prudential and treasury indicators for the next 4 years.

7. INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 2020/21

7.1 In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital and 
liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with the 
Council’s risk appetite. As shown by the forecasts in section 4, it is a very difficult 
investment market in terms of earning the level of interest rates commonly seen in 
previous decades as rates are very low and in line with the current 0.10% Bank Rate. 

7.2 The Council held £27.939m of investments as at 30 September 2020 (£65.290m at 31 
March 2020) and the investment portfolio yield for the first 6 months of the year is 
0.24% against current bank rate of 0.10%. The level of investments varies throughout 
the year, for example some investments held in March matured in April to enable a 
payment to be made to the pension fund in April.  

7.3 The Chief Finance Officer confirms that the revised approved limits within the Annual 
Investment Strategy were not breached during the first 6 months of 2020/21.

7.4 The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2020/21 is £0.409m, and performance for 
the year to date is below this at £0.068m. However, whist reduced interest rates have 
affected the council’s investment income, there has been a saving on the council’s 
temporary borrowing budget with a budget for the year of £1.686m against costs of 
£0.342m for the year to date.

7.5 The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS is meeting 
the requirement of the treasury management function. It provides sufficient creditworthy 
counterparties for the council’s investments.

7.6 There has been no change in the council’s risk appetite for investments.

8. BORROWING

8.1 The Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR) for 2020/21 is forecast to be 
£709.2m. The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital 
purposes. If the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market 

Page 12



7

(external borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal 
borrowing). The balance of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by 
market conditions. Table 5 shows the Council’s current debt level of £404.3m and the 
yearend forecast of £490.3m. 

8.2 The option to use long term borrowing to finance this expenditure to minimise the 
council’s interest rate risk exposure will be kept under review. This will include an 
assessment of the different sources of funding available to the council.

Table 8 graph showing the movement in PWLB certainty rates since the start of 
the current financial year

Table 9 table showing the movement in PWLB certainty rates since the start of 
the current financial year

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year
Low 1.74% 1.67% 1.91% 2.40% 2.13%
Date 14/07/2020 30/07/2020 31/07/2020 18/06/2020 24/04/2020
High 1.94% 1.99% 2.19% 2.80% 2.65%
Date 08/04/2020 08/04/2020 08/04/2020 28/08/2020 28/08/2020

Average 1.81% 1.81% 2.04% 2.52% 2.30%

8.3 PWLB rates have varied within a relatively narrow range between April and July but the 
rates on longer term borrowing have risen during August.

8.4 No debt rescheduling has been undertaken to date in the current financial year. 

9. OTHER

IFRS16 accounting standard 

Page 13



8

9.1 This accounting standard will come into effect from 1 April 2021 and be implemented in 
the 2021/22 financial accounts. It specifies the principles for recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases as a response to concerns about the lack of 
transparency in information. For any leases the council has entered or enters into as a 
lessee, the assets and liabilities arising with a term of more than 12 months are to be 
recognised in the financial statements unless they are of low value (less than £5k). 

9.2 The impact on the council is likely to be the recognition of additional assets on the 
balance sheet leading to a significant increase in the CFR, due to the expected level of 
leases the council has entered into of this nature. The prudential indicators table in 
appendix 2 reflects an initial estimate based on information readily available. An 
exercise to review all the council’s lease contracts is due to take place over the next 
year.

Changes in risk appetite
9.3 The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced importance on risk 

management. Where an authority changes its risk appetite e.g. for moving surplus cash 
into or out of certain types of investment funds or other types of investment 
instruments, this change in risk appetite and policy should be brought to members’ 
attention in treasury management update reports. There has been no change in the 
council’s risk appetite for investments.

10. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 The council has not taken any new long term borrowing so far in this financial year. The 
option to use long term borrowing to finance capital expenditure to minimise the 
council’s interest rate risk exposure will be kept under review. The council has 
continued to manage a portfolio of short-term borrowing to take advantage of the low 
interest rates currently available in the market. 

10.2 The council has stayed within prudential limits in the review period. 

10.3 Members are requested to note the contents of the report and the changes to the 
prudential indicators detailed in appendix 2.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Treasury management strategy; budget strategy.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

The monitoring and control of risk underpins all treasury management activities. The 
main risks are of adverse or unforeseen fluctuations in interest rates and security of 
capital sums.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor

The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the Council's policies for managing its 
investments which includes giving priority to security and liquidity.

Page 14



9

The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) and supporting regulations requires the 
Council to ‘have regard to’ the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice to set 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s 
capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. The Act therefore 
requires the Council to set out its Treasury Management Strategy at the start of each 
new financial year and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (as required by 
Investment Guidance subsequent to the Act); this sets out the Council’s policies for 
managing its investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those 
investments. 

The Council is also required to “determine for the current financial year an amount of 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) that it considers to be prudent.” It is also required to 
submit a statement on the Council’s policy for its annual MRP to the Council for approval 
before the start of the financial year to which the provision will relate. 

The Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21was set out in a report to Council and 
approved by them on the 27 February 2020. This complied with the relevant 
requirements of the Local Government Act 2003 and the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code. This further report to Council provides a progress report on the Treasury 
Management Strategy for 2020/21. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: This report has been prepared by the Finance division of 
the Service Reform service group. The costs of borrowing: minimum revenue 
provision, interest and debt management expenses, are borne by the corporate 
capital financing budget.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS provided by: Not applicable

HR IMPLICATIONS provided by: Not applicable

OTHER SERVICE GROUPS CONSULTED: Not applicable

CONTACT OFFICERS:Tony Thompstone     TEL NO: 0161 793 2016

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: None specifically. 

Page 15



 

1

APPENDIX 1
Glossary of Terms

Base rate – the rate at which the Bank of England offers loans to the wholesale banks, thereby 
controlling general interest rates in the economy.

Capital financing requirement – reflects the local authority underlying need to borrow for a 
capital purpose.

Consolidated rate of interest (CRI) – is the average rate of interest for external borrowing during 
the year.

Fixed rate funding - a fixed rate of interest throughout the time of the loan. The rate is fixed at the 
start of the loan and therefore does not affect the volatility of the portfolio, until the debt 
matures and requires replacing at the interest rates relevant at that time.

Gilts - The loan instruments by which the government borrows. Interest rates will reflect the level 
of interest shown by investors when the government auctions gilts.

LOBO – “Lender offer, borrower option”, a financial instrument where the lender may choose to 
vary the interest rate at certain break points. Only if the lender chooses to vary the interest 
rate, the borrower has an option to terminate the arrangement at no penalty.

Market - The private sector financial institutions - banks, building societies etc.

Maturity profile - an illustration of when debts are due to mature, and either have to be renewed 
or money found to pay off the debt. A high concentration in one year will make the council 
vulnerable to current interest rates in that year.

Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) – the independent body which determines base rate.

PWLB - Public Works Loan Board. An institution managed by the government to provide loans to 
public bodies at rates which reflect the rates at which the government is able to sell gilts.

Variable rate funding - The rate of interest either continually moves reflecting interest rates of the 
day, or can be tied to specific dates during the loan period. Rates may change on a monthly, 
quarterly or annual basis.

Volatility - The degree to which the debt portfolio is affected by current interest rate movements. 
The more debt that matures in the year and needs replacing, and the more debt subject to 
variable interest rates, the greater the volatility.

Yield curve - A graph of the relationship of interest rates to the length of the loan. A normal yield 
curve will show interest rates relatively low for short term loans compared to long term loans. 
An inverted yield curve is the opposite of this.

Page 16



 

2

APPENDIX 2
Table 10 Revised Prudential and Treasury Indicators £m

Prudential Indicators 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Capital Expenditure 81.5 125.5 65.9 20.0 20.0
     

Capital financing requirement (CFR) 663.5 709.2 878.6 854.2 828.3
     

Total debt 618.5 663.6 832.4 807.5 781.0

Annual Change in CFR      
Capital expenditure financing 47.0 83.6 51.1 20.0 20.0
Debt repayment provision MRP -27.1 -37.9 -41.7 -44.4 -45.9
Total 19.9 45.7 9.5 -24.4 -25.9

Table 11 Operational boundary for external debt £m
Treasury Indicators 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Borrowing 598.6 617.0 603.2 587.3 570.3
Other long-term liabilities 208.5 183.3 355.4 346.9 338.0
Total 807.1 800.3 958.6 934.2 908.3

Table 12 Authorised limit for external debt £m
Treasury Indicators 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Borrowing 669.7 657.0 643.2 627.3 610.3
Other long-term liabilities 238.5 193.3 385.4 376.9 368.0
Total 908.2 850.3 1,028.6 1,004.2 978.3

Table 13 Graph of CFR, total debt, operational boundary and authorised limit

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
0.0

200.0

400.0

600.0

800.0

1000.0

1200.0

Total CFR Total debt Operational boundary Auhorised limit

£m

Table 14 Maturity structure for fixed rate borrowing estimated position at year end
Upper Limit Lower Limit % £M

Under 12 months 75% 0% 37% 247.0
12 and within 24 months 50% 0% 10% 63.2
24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 15% 101.3
5 years and within 10 years 50% 0% 6% 39.3
10 years and above 100% 25% 32% 212.9

Page 17



 

3

Table 15 Maturity structure for variable rate borrowing estimated position at year end
Table 16

Upper Limit Lower Limit % £M

Under 12 months 10% 0% 0% 0.0
12 and within 24 months 0% 0% 0% 0.0
24 months and within 5 years 0% 0% 0% 0.0
5 years and within 10 years 0% 0% 0% 0.0
10 years and above 0% 0% 0% 0.0

Table 17 Upper Limit for Investments beyond 365 days estimated position at year end
 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Estimated 
position at 
year end

Upper Limit for Investments beyond 
365 days £40m £40m £40m £40m £0 

The operational boundary limits for external debt reflect the estimate of the most likely, prudent, but 
not worst case, scenario without the additional headroom included within the authorised limit.

These indicators should be considered together. Whilst all the council’s borrowing is fixed, the 
amount due to mature in the next 12 months looks high at £247.0m, this is partly explained 
because the figure includes £83m of LOBO loans that are callable in 2020/21, it is unlikely that 
LOBO loans will be called over the next few years as the LOBO interest rates already exceed 
current market rates and the option to change lies with the banks. The forecast £157.4m of 
temporary borrowing due for renewal within 12 months; is in-line with the council’s current strategy.

Following the increase in the margin in the PWLB rates by an additional 1%, the differential is 
1.82% between short term rates (0.2% for 1 year) and 10-year maturity PWLB rate (2.02%). 
Although the current strategy is to utilise very low short-term rates. With £157.4m of forecasted 
temporary borrowing, the additional call on the revenue budget of switching from temporary 
borrowing to a 10-year fix would be £2.9m per year.

For exceptional reasons only, such as a large-scale voluntary transfer of assets, the indicators may 
be temporarily flexed to allow repayment and rescheduling of borrowing.

Page 18



 

Overview and Scrutiny Board 
Work Programme and Recommendation Tracker as of 13 October 2020

Please note: There will be a Members only briefing at 1.30pm, with the main committee commencing at 2.00pm (unless otherwise 
stated

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS

Date Topic Responsible officer (s)

4 November 
2020

Awareness session: Budget & Treasury Management.

Mid Year Treasury Management report 

Budget Proposals – update on progress

Update on each of the scrutiny panels work programmes, including a 
verbal update on panel activities since last reported in July.

Finance officers to facilitate – Joanne 
Hardman & Tony Thompstone

Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Scrutiny chairs.

2 December 
2020

2nd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. 

Briefing note – settlement figures

Corporate Performance report 

Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Jim Taylor and Jacquie Russell

January 2021 No meeting

3 February Revenue Budget & Capital Programme for 2021/22 Schedule Lead Members with their 
Executive Support and Director 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



2

30/45 minute timeslots.
3 March Procurement Strategy – schedule March 2021.

(Living wage and social value considerations) 

(Last report submitted June 2019).

Pandemic Recovery – Workforce and Digital Update
(Last report submitted October 2020)

Anthony Hilton, Debbie Brown and Cllr 
Hinds

Councillors Hinds & Bentham, Sam 
Betts & Steven Fry

ABEYANCE LIST

Corporate Performance report 
Half year report – December 2019 def to March 2020
End of year report – July 202

Jim Taylor and Jacquie Russell

Update on the integration with the CCG: Children’s, Adults and 
Public Health

Cllr Merry, Charlotte Ramsden, Muna Abdel-Aziz and Cllr 
Reynolds

Apprenticeship Strategy update – schedule December 2020

(Last the report submitted July 2019).

Cllr Bentham - Executive Support Member, Sam Betts and 
Frank O’Sullivan

Fair Funding Review – updates as and when available will be 
included in reports

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Business Rates Retention Scheme - updates as and when 
available will be included in reports.

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Financial Investment overview of the University/Council 
Master Plan – Schedule summer 2021

TBC

P
age 20



3

SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MONITORING REPORTS

Corporate Performance report
Half year report – December & end of year report July

Councillor Boshell and Jacquie 
Russell

Treasury Management Strategy. Schedule February each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Treasury Management Outturn Report – schedule September each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Mid-year Treasury Management report – schedule November  each year Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Revenue Budget and Capital Programme. Schedule February each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

1st Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. Schedule September each year Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

2nd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report.- Schedule December each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

3rd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report – Schedule March each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

4th Quarter - Outturn Report. Schedule July each year. Cllr Hinds and Joanne Hardman

REVIEWS

No reviews planned at present.

P
age 21



4

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER

No recommendations presently outstanding

Portfolio of the Board: Membership – 11 Members:

1.Co-ordinating the work of the Scrutiny Panels. 
2. Scrutinising corporate services. 
3. conducting a programme of value for money scrutinies.
4. Considering reports from the Audit and Accounts Committee.
5. Scrutinising overall budget matters and all other financial 
matters, including the Treasury Management Strategy.
6. To receive reports from the Scrutiny Panels on a six-monthly 
basis.
7. To consider requests for scrutiny reviews under the Councillor 
Call for Action process (other than calls for action relating to 
Crime and Disorder matters where requests shall be referred 
directly to the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel. 

Councillors 
 Turner
 Garrido, Karen
 Bellamy
 Brocklehurst
 Burch
 Jolley - Chair
 King – Vice Chair
 Morris
 Nelson
 Sharpe
 Pevitt

P
age 22


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 7 October 2020
	4 Treasury Management Strategy Mid Year Review 2020/21
	7 Work Programme 2020/21

